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The College Hill Historic District is conprised of approxlmetely 120
acres of land in the 3%l-acre portion of Providence that is known as’ the
College Hill section. The College Hill section, which contains all of the
original (1638) town site, is bounded on the north by Olney Street, on the
scuth by George ‘M. Cohan Boulevard, on the east by Hope Street and on‘the
west by the Providence and Moshassguck Rivers. :

K

The College Hill Historic District, loczted on the west side of the
College Hill secttion, 1s that portion of College Hill which contains the
largest conceniretion of historically and architecturally valuable structures,
The backbone of the District is Benefit Street, which runs north-south the
length of the District for some 17 blocks and’ spreads east and west of -
Benefit Street in & irregular form - sometimes for one block on either side,
sometimes considerably more, and sometimes less. The District is comprised
of the liith certury and early 19th century cere of Providence and, located ’
on the steep western slope of College hill, overlooks the preset- day more
modern commercial center of the city. The District contains a total of som:
334 hHistoric structures; these include 63 colonial buildings dating from the
1730-1753 period end 275 Federal period structures erected in the period

17584 to 1425,

: Historic structures, chiefly residences - at the northern and southern
ends of the District, suffered from blight over the years., From 1960 to deee
more than 150 of these buildings have been restored on their exteriors and .
been put into good condition. Work is actively in progress on other historic
houses in the District and there are very few modern intrusions in the ares.

' Among the architecturally distinguished structures located in the
College Historic District are the following baildings: :

1. The First Baptist Meeting House, located at 75 North Main Street This -
late Georgian frame church was designed by Jeseph Brown and erected in 177h-
75. The church is of national significance archlcecturally and is &
Registered National Historic Landmark.

2. The John Brown House, located at 52 Power Street. A magnificent exemple
of o Late Georgian three-story brick mansion, the residence was designed by -
Joseph Brown and built in 17:36-88. The house is of national significance
architecturally and is & Registered National Historic Landmark.

3. The John Corliss-Edward Carrington House, at 66 Williams Street, Built
in 1910-12, this residence is & superb example of a large three-story brick
Adamesque-Federal styled mansioen.

4, The Thomas Poynton Ives House, at 66 Power Street. Built by Caleb
Ormsbee in 1703-0€, the Ives House is a magnificent example of a large three
{f—\\ story brick Federal residence.

3 ’ N . . a3
g 5. 'The Joseph Nightingale-Nicholas Prowr. House, at 357 Benefit Street,

' Erected by Calcb Ormsbee in 1791-92, this regsidence is a distinguished
exocmple s«of & large three- suory f:ame late Georgian house,
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The College Hill Historic District is & superb example of & late 1Uth
century and early 19th century New Engiand city. The district contains the

1120-acre core of the original 30l-acre ! 27th century town site, as laid out
by Roger Williams in 1638, and approximately 338 structures of thﬂ 00401151

and Federel Periods, built between 1730. and 1825.
History i

Providence had its origin in 1636 wvhen Roger Williams, religlous
leader anc¢ Indian trader, and his follovers, exiled for heresy from
Congregationalist Salem, Massachusetts, get up a colony at the head cf
Narragansett Bay and at the confluence of the Moshassuck and Woomasquituckss<
Rivers. The new settlement grew around a spring of fresh water located on
the west side of North Main Street near .the present Alamo Lane, & short
distance south of Smith Street. The separation of church and state in
Rhode Island was partly responsible for the pattern of Providence's growth.
In Massechusetts and Connecticut town 1lsnd was set asside for the state
church, facing on a common, and the church and green became the cenlers
around which the settlers grouped their houses. In Providence, however, no
church was built until 1700 and no villsge green was ever contemplated,
Instead the Proprietors, in 1633, laid nsut deep narrow house lots in ¢
straggling line along an Indian pathway on the east shore of the Greati Salt
River and the lots extended eastward up over a steep hill to present-cday
Hope Street. Topography determined this peculiar linear plan and influencad
the shape of the long, narrow house lots which ranged from 100 to 135 fect
in width, 1600 to 30C0 feet in length, and from 4 1/2 to 8 1/2 acres in arec
The houses were all located on the west side of the lots and faced upon the
north-south "Towne Street" (now called North and South Main streets)
that formed the spine of the village. The town site was comprised of about
341 acres and occupied the area now known as College Hill. -

By 1650 there were about 51 wood houses, a mill and one tannery: only
one colonist was engaged in the sea trade and the _remainder Were planters.
In 1675, during King Philip's War, Providence was burned to the ground by |
the Indians, except for two houses. The town was rebuilt on its original
plan and by 1700 had some 1,200 inhabitants. In the early 1700's
Providence began to turn from farming to the sea and there was a steady

expansion of commerce with Europe and the West Indies.

.
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8. Significance' 1

By 1730 the increased prosperity was reflected in the numbers, size, and style
of Providence's churches and houses the first brick houses were erected in
‘that yesar. Until the eve of the American Revolution, however, Providence
lagged far behind Newport, Rhode Island, as a comnercial and trading center,
but by 1775 the-stage was set for the emergency of Providence asg B major port.
During the ensuing years of the Revolutionary War, Providence's commerce vas
crippled by the blockade of Narragansett Bay, but the town did not suffer
occupation by the British for three years as did Newport, and its commerce:
recovered quickly after the war.. By 1880 ‘the population of Providence
numbered over 7,500 whereas Newport's population had dropped from 9,000 tu,
_about 4,000 between 1775 and 1730: Providence had finally supplanted Fewport
as the chief trading port in Rhode Island. Providence' commercial wealth is
_still reflected in the survey fine, homes, churches, and public bulldings-
erected during this period during this period, many of which were designec by
the noted mmateur architect, Joseph Brown of Providence. .

In the early 19th Century Providence rapidly shifted from the sea to
industry. In 1790 the first successful American cotton manufactory waes
egtablished in Pawtucket by Samuel Slater with funds provided by a Providghce
merchant. By 1812 over 30 cotton mills were.in successful operation and
fortunes founded on shipping were now augmented by native industry and by
wholesale and retail commerce. By 182k the city had a population of 15,000,
As Joseph Brown had been responsible for most of the significant building

' immediately before and sfter the Revolutionary War, so the imprint of the
architect-builder, John Holden Greene, was stamped on early 19th century
Providence. He designed slmost every important building erected beiween 1309
and the close c¢f his career in 1930, By 14357, with & population of 30,00(,
Providence had spread far to the south, west and north of the original towa
site, T :

In August, 19f0, the College Hill Historiec Digstrict in Providence wasz
established by municipal legislation. ' The Districet is under the supervision
of an appointed commissien whose purpose is8 to main the intergrity of its -
whole and to preserve, maintain and improve the architectural and visudd
qualities of its parts or contents. Over the years certain parts of the
Historic District --- meinly at its northern and southern ends --- had suffered
from blight, though fortunately this was seldom accompanied by the disappearancs
of historic structures. Much improvement has teken place in these porticens
gince 190 and is being continued with the advice and control of the Histeric
District Commicsion, the assistance of the Providence Preservatlon Society,
and .the funds and enthusiasm of the property-owners themselves. More than 150
historic houses have been restored to date.
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2. Boundaries of the College Hill Historic District:

Southern houndary begins at back lot lincs.of Sheldon Street; then east
along back lot.lines of -the south side of Sheldon Street to the east side of
Brook Strect, theace north along the east side of Brook Street to the center
of Williams Streer, Then west along the center of Williams Street to the east
side of Thayer Street, thence north on Thayer Street to the nocth side of
Power Street., Then west along the north side of Power Street to approximately
1/2 the distance between Thayer Street and Brown .Street where it turns north to
Charlesfield Street on the north side of that street. It then turns west a
very short distance where it turns north, then west, then. south to include
two houses on the north side of Charlesfield Street, It then proceeds west on
the north side of Charlesfield Street to approximately 2/3 the distance betwee
Brown Street and Benefit Street where it turns north across Benevolent Street
along the west side of Magee Street to the back lot lone of Benevolent Street,
thence west, abour 1/3 the distance between Magee Street and Benefit Street on
George Street along the back lots lines of George Street and Benevolent Strect
thence north to the north side of George Street, then west 1/3 the distance
from Prospect Street and Benefit Street. It turns north here to the back lot
lines on the north side of George Street, thence west to the back lot 1ines on
the east side of Benefit Streelt where it turns north crossing College Street L
the north side of Waterman Street. It proceeds north around the corner of -
Waterman and Benefit Streets east on Angell Street on the south side to the
back lot lines on the east side of Benefit Street, thence northernly approxi-
mately 1/2 the distance between Angell Street and Meeting Street, thence east
across Congdon Street along the north back lot lines of Angell Street on
Defoe Place, thence southernly along the west side of Defoe Place to the south
side of Angell Street. Here it turns east along the south side of Angell
Street to the west side of Prospect Street where it turns south across Waterma
and College Streets to approximately 1/3 the distance between College and
George Streets where it turns east into the Brewn University Campus thence
north to the north side of Waterman Street to include University, Manuning and
Hope College Halls.,  Here it turns west to the back lot line on the east side
of Prospect Street at the corner of Waterman Street, then north azlong the east
back lot lines of Prospect Street to the south side of Angell Street, thence
cast to the back lot line of the west side of Brown Street. Here it turns
north to thé north side of Olive Street, thence westerly to the back lot line

“Ferin 10-3000 UNITED STATES DEPARTHENT OF THE INTERIOR SYATE N 7
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of the east side of Prospect Street at the corner of Olive Street where it turns

north to the north side of Meeting Street. Here it turns west to, the corner
of Prospect and Meeting Streets then north on Prospect Street to approximately
3/4 the distance between Meeting and Cushing Streets where it turns west to
the back lot lines on the west side of Prospect Street. Here it turns south
to the north side of Meebting Street, thence westerly to the east side of
Congdon Street, then north on Congdon Street to Cwshing Street then east to
the back lot lines on the ecast side of Congdon Stueet where it turns north,
following these back lot lincs on the east side of Congdon Street, across

Bowen Street and Lloyd Avenue to a_point appreximately 1/4 the distance
between Lloyd Avenue and Jenckes Streets whecre it tuins west across Congdow
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to the northern boundary of Prospect Terrace Park where it turns west along th
back lot lines on the north side of Bowen Street to the back lot lines eon the
east side of Benafli Street. Here. it turns north, following the back lot line
on the east side 5f Benefit Street, and it crosses Jenckes and Halsey Streety’
the south side of Olney Street where it turns wvest and south along the west ﬁi
Benefit Street. This is the novthern boundary of the District. :

Starting south on the west side of Benefit Street, approximately 1/4 the ™
distance from the junction of North Main ané Lenefit Streets and Star Streety
the line goes west to the back lot line on the: west side of Benefit Street,
then south along the back lot lines on the west side of Benefit Street to thu
corner of Benefit and_Star Streets where it turns west along the back lot line
on the north side of Star Strcet to the back lct line on the east side of Nogt
Main Street where it turns south to the south side of Star Street, thence east
to a point approximately 1/2 way between Benefit and North Main Streets where
it turns south to-the back lot line on the south side of Star Street, Here
it turns west to the west side of North Main Street at the north east cornerio
Smith and North Main Streets. Now it runs south on the west side of North
Main Strect to the south west corner of Waterman and North Main Streets whern
it turns east on the south side of Waterman Street to the south west cormer of]
Benefit and Waterman Streets, Now the line runt south along the west side of’
Benefit Street across College Street to the south west cormer of Benefit and
Hopkins Streets where it turns west to the west side of South Main Street whur
it turns south along the west side of South Main Street to a point approxima.c
1/3 the distance between Hopkins Street and Pianet Street where it turns eas:
to the back lot lines along the west side of Benefit Street. It now turns
south along the back lot lines on the west side of Benefit Street across
Planet Street to Power Street, Here it turns west again to South Main Street
the east side, north on South Main Street approximately 1/2 the distance
between Power and Planet Streets where it again turns west across South Main .
Street to the west side of South Water Street., Here it turns south on South
Water Street to the south side of James Street where it again. turns east on
the south side of James Street to the back lot line of the house on the south
west corner of James and South Main Streets, thence south along this back lot
line to the south line of this corner property thence east across South Main
Street following the back lot lines on the south side of James Stree to a
point where the back lot lines on the south side of James Street join the back
lot lines on the west side of Benefit Street. The line then runs south along
the back lot line on Benefit Street across Transit Street to the back lot
lines on the south side of Transit Street, thence east to the back lot lines
‘on the west side of Benefit Street where it turns south along these back lot
lines on Lencfit Strect ro the Southern Boundary or beginning approkimately 1
way between Wickenden and Sheldon Streets on %enefit Street, R
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